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CONTENTS

1. Name and location of property:
The 1924 Lowell Teacherage
503 W. First Street
Lowell, NC 28098

2. Name and address of current owner:
Town of Lowell
101 W. First Street
Lowell, NC 28098
Telephone (704) 824 3578

3. Representative photographs,

4. Maps depicting location of the property.

5. Current deed references of the property.

6. Historical sketch of the property has been prepared by Ms. Martha Burris, City
Council Member, Lowell, NC,

7. Architectural deseription of the property has been prepared by Matthew
Thomas, Huntersville, NC.

8. Documentation of Why and in What ways the property is of historical
significance to Gaston County:

The Historic Preservation Commission believes that the Lowell Teacherage built
in 1924 is a rare example telling the life style of early twentieth century educators. It has
played a major part in the life of the Lowell community and continues to remind citizens
how historic buildings, restored and maintained, can still serve a use while they teach a
history lesson.
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Lowell Teacherage Deed History

Gaston Counly Board of Education to the Town of Lowell, a lot situaied in the
Town of Lowel] bordered by NC Highway #7 and the Peerless Spinning
Company, by deed dated February 1, 1969 and recorded February 24, 1969
iatBook 1000, page 64, Gaston County Regisiry.

J.R. Hudson and wife, Edith R. Hudson, to the Board of Education of Gaston
County, 3/4 acre being an empty lot between the T.P. Rankin residence and the
Cashion home (now Lowell Teacherage), by deed dated November 28, 1939 and
recorded December 13, 1939 at Book 348, page 254, Gaston County Registry.

. Peerless Manufacturing Company to the County Board of Education of Gaston
County, 3/4 of an acre adjoining Lowell Cotton Mills, southern Railway, and T.P.
Rankin's lot, by deed dated September 23, 1925 and recorded December 10, 1926
in Book 210 page 456 Gaston County Registry.

T.P Rankin and wife, Pearl Rankin, a lot along the Southerh Railway being
identical to #3 above, by deed dated March 2, 1915 and recorded October 23,
1925 at Book 202 page 347 Gaston County Registry.

Gearge Patrick Featherstone and wife to T. P. Rankin, a lot along the Southern
Railway identical to #3 above, by deed dated February 9, 1915 and recorded
February 11, 1915 at Book 110 page 392 Gaston County Registry.

R.A. Miller St. and wife, 1sla Miller, a lot along the Southern Railway, same as #3
above, by deed dated September 12, 1913 and recorded September 12, 1913 at
Book 104 page 39, Gaston County Registry.

R.A. Miller Jr. to R.A. Miller Sr., a 1/2 interest in lots 2 and 3 containing 2 acres,
as shown on a plat for W.W. Stroup made on March 4 1907, by deed dated
January 10, 1911 and recorded February 7, 1911 at Book 83 page 50, Gaston
County Registry.

Historical Note: It cannot be determined from the deed records how RA. Miller Jr. came
into possession of the lots shown at #7 above, nor who owned the other 1/2 interest. The
plat made for W.W. Stroup was apparently never recorded. fHowever, the deed records
do indicate that between 1866 and 1881, Wesley W. Stroup acquired a number of tracts
along the waters of the South Fork of the Catawba River. One of these iracts, containing
10 acres which Stroup purchased for $80.00, is bordered by the Lowell Cotion Mills and
the Atlanta and Richmond Airline Rail Way Company. This is the likely source for the
Teacherage property, though this hypothesis cannot be confirmed by the meets and bound
description.



History of Lowell Community Center
{Lowell Teacherage)
501 W. First Street
Lowell, North Carolina 28098

The Loweli Teacherage was built in 1924 (Brengle, 1982; NC Education Association.
1957) to provide housing for unmarried teachers who came from various regional
colleges to teach in the Lowell School District (Ragan). In his master's thesis, O. L. Kiser
(1928) stated that Gaston County had fourteen teacherages at the time and
recommended that more were needed in order to make the living conditions more
desirable for rural and village teachers. The Lowell Teacherage, now the Lowel!
Community Center, is the only public-owned building remaining in Gaston County that

" served as a teacherage.

Two other buildings, a principal's house and a small cottage for the cook and maid, were
located at the site of the teacherage. The principal's house was first located on First
Street and later moved behind the teacherage near the railroad tracks (K. Martin, 2004).
Both structures no longer exist.

Significant expansion occurred in the Lowell Schoot District during 1924. Not only was
the teacherage built, but the school district built Lowell High School and Gymnasium and
Art Cloth School to serve the children of the Art Cloth Mill Village on the northern edge
of town. The total enroliment in 1924 was 383 elementary students and 75 high school
students (Davis, Evans, Reavis, Crisp, & Hatley, 1992). In addition, a new district
principal, John M. Holbrook, was hired.

From 1924 to 1968, the Lowell Teacherage was owned and operated by the Lowell
School District which was a part of the Gaston County School System. By 1968 the
Gaston County School System had seventeen different districts. Gastonia and
Cherryville had separate school systems. The Lowell district grew to consist of the
following schools: Art Cloth, McAdenville, Ranlo, . Dora Humphries and Lowell. Teachers
from Art Cloth, McAdeanle Ranlo, and Lowell could live in the teacherage (J. Martin,
2004). Each school district could levy a special school tax to supplement the funds
provided by the state and county government {The Public Schools of Gaston County,
NC. A Survey Report 1966). During this time two principals served the district, John M.

Holbrook (1924-1962) and Jim Martin (1962-1968).

The teacherage served, not only as a home for teachers, but as a great environment for
older teachers to support new teachers by increasing their knowledge and skills (J.
Martin, 2004). During the 1950’s Miss Hesier Smith managed the teacherage with the
assistance of her sister, Miss Blanche Smith, who was also a county nurse. In addition
to the managers, the teacherage had a cook and maid to care for the common areas of
the building and to prepare meals. Residents were expected to clean their own rooms.
From 1950 to 1953, Jake and Martha McAllister (M. McAlfister, 2004) becarne the first
married couple to live the teacherage. They paid $80 ($40 per person) a month to cover
- their room and three meals per day. Meals were served in the dining room complete with
linen and silver except for Sunday evenings when a brown-bagged meal was provided.
Teachers came home fo the teacherage during the middle of the school day for lunch.

~ Student teachers could also have their lunch meals at the teacherage. The kitchen was
closed after the evening meal. T

The teacherage had twenty-five rooms {Ragan). Teachers had the optlions of sharing
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bedrooms or having a smaller room of their own. Each floor had a bathroom. Sinks
were located in the bedrooms. The men and women lived on both floors. During the
1950's there was no restriction on men and women entering each others bedrooms, but
the opposite sex could not stay in the room. The rcoms had no closets. Clothes were
hung in wardrobes. The managers had a larger room and a bathroom that was
separate from the rooms for the teachers.

The parlor was the room for people to gather. In the 1950's the teacherage had a

" télevision which was a rarity at the time. They would also meet their dates in the parlor.

Thie front porch was also a great gathering place. Residents would rock and talk. There
was also a shuffleboard court in front of the teacherage. One telephone was shared by
the residents during the 1950-1960's. Teachers were expected to pay for their long
distance calls (M. McAllister, J. & K. Martin, 2004).

Most of the teachers went home or back to coliege during the summer months. The
building was then used for summer interns from NC State and Clemson Universities to
work in the textile mills. No meals were provided for the summer interns (M. McAliister,
J. Martin, 2004).

Several noted educators lived in the teacherage.: Jerry Rice’'became the Vice-
Chancellor of Western Carolina and his wife, Polly Rice, was a professor at Western
Carolina. Mr. John Holbrook:was employed in the Lowelt School District from 1918 until
his retirement in 1962, Mrs. Elizabeth Holbrook, his wife, was principal of McAdenville.
They resided in the Principal's House. Jim Martin:served as principal from 1962 to 1968
and later became Superintendent of Stanly County Schools. He “took meals” in the
teacherage as a student teacher and later lived in the Principal's House (J. Martin & H.
Rankin, 2004)

In the summer of 1968, the Gaston County, Gastonia, and Cherryville School Systems
merged. An interim board was appointed that made many changes. The group decided
that the Lowell District could not continue to operate a teacherage because other
schools within the system did not have teacherages. This would be considered
disproportionate appropriation. Bill Brown, Superintendent of the newly consolidated
Gaston County School System, said that the building was no longer needed by the
school system (J. Martin & H. Rankin, 2004)

The Town of Lowell expressed interest in obtaining the building to be used as a
community center. The community center would be used for community meetings, civic
group meetings, classes, and special family events such as family reunions, birthday
parties, and receptions (H. Rankin, 2004). On February 3, 1969, the Lowell Board of _
Alderman (City of Lowell, February 3, 1969) hield a régular meefing. Mayor Coit
~Rabinson, Jr. reported that he and Alderman Russell Stepp had contacted several
industries and civic clubs concerning the purchase of the teacherage for a community
center. Support was strong for purchasing of the building. The city had committed
$15,000 toward the purchase of the properly and had deposited $1,500 with the Gaston
County Schools to bind the purchase. The Board of Aldermen called a special meeting
_on February 20, 1969 (City of Lowell, February 20, 1969). Present were Mayor Cait M.
Robinson, Jr., Aldermen Harold Rankin, J. M. Blair, Horace Brafford, Wesley Stroup,
and Russell Stepp. The Board unanimously passed a resolution to care and maintain
the Lowell School Teacherage as a community center upon the conveyance of the deed.
The also passed a resolution commending those who contributed toward the purchase
of the building. Those commended were: Beaunit Textiles Division of Beaunit Corp., J.



R. Hudson, Lowell Lions Club, Lowell Optimist Club, Peerless Spinning Corp., United
Spinners Corp., and the Women's Club of Lowell.

Major improvements-were made to the Lowell Community Center during 1972 -1974
during the tenure of Mayor Dan Blair. Committee members included Ted Horne, Howard
Teague, Sadie Seigle, Ken Capps, Gene Morrow. Renovations included refinishing the
floors, rewiring the building, renovation of the kitchen and improvements in the
restrooms (Howard Teague, October 15, 2004).

The Lowell Community Center became the regular meeting place for civic organizations.
After a number of years of use the building needed repairs and renovation. These
renovations were made in 1984 when Harold Rankin served as mayor and Russell
Stepp, Sr. chaired the Community Center Committee. Improvements inciuded interior
repainting and roof repairs.

Currently, the Community Center continues to be used by the residents of Lowell for community
and social events as well as the Office of the Recreation Director.
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Lowell Teacherage

Architectural Description

by Matthew S. Thonas

(Note: the author thanks Michael T. Southern, Supervisor, Survey and Planning Branch,
North Carolina Stafe Historical Preservation Office, for his help in identifying certain
architectural features included in this description)

The Lowell Teacherage is a rectangular, two-story, partial basement, flat roofed, brick
building of simplified Classical Revival styling.! The building is set back with front, side
and rear lawns. The front, or east elevation, boasts a nine-bay-wide main block (an
interior brick chimney used to vent a coal burning fireplace located at the southern end of
the main block can be seen rising behind the parapet). A three-bay-wide wing extends the
front facade southward. The wing’s south elevation is two-bays-deep. The south
elevation of the main block is an additional three-bays-deep and has a fire escape
platform affixed to the second story’s easternmost window. Immediately adjacent, on the
wing’s west wall, is the escape ladder, On the opposite side of the structure, the north

' This writer was unable to access the basement area to ascertain if the structure had a full or
partial basement. A partial basement is clearly evident.



elevation is two-bays deep. The two bays are separated at both the first and second levels
by centrally located double-doors. The upper halves of the north fagade’s second floor
double-doors are distinguished with large, single paned windows (again, an interior brick
chimney for a coal burning fireplace located at the northern end of the main block can be
seen as it rises slightly above and behind the parapet). The rear of the structure, or west
elevation, is nine-bays-wide. A centrally located exterior chimney rises from the
basement to well above the roof line. A single door, decorated with a transom, is located
at the southern extremity. The fenestration of each fagade is symmetrical. All windows
on the structure which have not been boarded, or otherwise covered, are double-hung and
are marked with six paned tops and single paned bottoms and all have concrete sills.

The teacherage is characterized by simplified classical formality. As one faces the front
elevation, one is met by eight concrete risers enclosed by two step-up cheek walls capped
with concrete. The concrete risers lead to a prominent and symmetrical concrete front
porch; wrought iron railing is situated in the middle of the steps. A brick wall encases the
porch and rises to form a low knee-wall above the porch’s floor; it is capped with
concrete. The knee-wall provides support for the large square-in-section posts with
simple capitals that serve to support the roof. A wide, classical entablature runs between
the tops of the posts and the sloped porch roof. Centrally located on the front porch is the
main double-door entrance with transom and sidelights (a similarly constructed porch,
though smaller in size and lacking steps, is located on the north fagade. Tt too has a
double-door entrance, but the doors are otherwise unadorned). The structure is further
characterized by a pronounced cornice which runs between the second floor windows and
the brick parapet. The parapet conceals the flat roof on the east, south, and north
elevations. The west elevation lacks both cornice and parapet. Small pediments which are
centered on the main fagade parapet and roof porch deviate somewhat from the classical
style and evoke Spanish Mission architecture. It is this writer’s opinion that, due to the
building’s status as a teacherage, this was done purposefully to lend a “mission” feeling
to the structure.

The teacherage derives its structural integrity from its eight inch thick brick walls. The
exterior is laid in deviation of the common American bond. As opposed to introducing a
full header coarse every fifth coarse, headers are introduced every seventh course, and
cach header is separated by a single stretcher. Instances of ornamental brickwork on the
structure abound. A bonded soldier course delineates the foundation from the first floor
and wraps the entire building. A simple soldier course also wraps the building and serves
as a visual line of separation delineating the first from the second floor as well as topping
the first floor window lintels perfectly. Again, a simple soldier course wraps the building
at the top of the second floor windows. Qutset rectangular patterns adorn the walls
between first and second floor windows. The patterns are made by outset bullheader
courses comprising the horizontal lines and an outset stacked header courses running the
vertical lines.
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October 28, 2005

Lucy Penegar, Chair

Gaston County Historic Preservation Commission
737 Ferguson Ridge Rd.

Gaslonia NC 28052

Re:  Landmark designation report for the Lowell Teacherage, 503 W, First
Street, Lowell, Gaston County

Dear Ms. Penegar:

Thank you for the landmark designation report for the Lowell Teacherage. We have reviewed the
information and offer the following comments in accordance with North Carolina General
Statute 160A-400.6.

Constructed about 1924, the Lowell Teacherage is a landmark in the history of public education
in Gaston County. The building represents an era when local school boards provided housing for
teachers working at nearby public schools. Such facilities not only met basic housing needs for
teachers, but fostered a community spirit among educators and enabled older teachers to provide
counsel to younger teachers in a community setting. The building served as a teacherage until 4
1968, when it was sold to the Town of Lowell for use as a community center. The exterior of the
two-story brick building with simple Classical Revival detail is well preserved. The survey and
research report provides the Gaston County Historic Preservation Commission and the local
governing board adequate information to deem that the Lowell Teacherage has the requisite
special significance and integrity for landmark designation.

We have one question regarding the probable date of construction of the building. The deed
history included with the report implies that the Gaston County Board of Education did not
acquire the property until September, 1925. If that is the case, it seems mote likely that the
building was not constructed in 1924 but in 1925-1926. Perhaps the parcel named in the deed
history is not the parcel upon which the Teacherage was constructed. This point does not affect
the eligibility of the structure for landmark designation, but it is a question that the commission
may wish to resolve in an amendment to the report.

Landmark designation means the community recognizes this property as an important historic
resource worthy of preservation. Any substantial exterior design changes to a designated
Jandmark are subject to the design review procedures of the preservation commission. Owners of
designated landmarks that are subject to property tax may apply for annual deferral of fifty

www.hpo.der.staie.nc.us

Location Mailing Address Telephoue/Itax
ADMINISTRATION 507 N. Bleunt St., Raleigh NC 4617 Mail Service Center, Ralcigh NC 27699-4617 (919) 733-4763 « 733-8653
RESTORATION 515 N. Blount St., Raleigh NC 4617 Mail Service Cenler, Raleigh NC 27699-4617 {919) 733-6547 » T15-4301

SURVEY & PLANNING 515 N. Blount St., Raleigh NC 4617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh NC 27699-4617 {919)733-6545 » 715-4801
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Ms. Lucy Penegar
October 28, 2005
Page 2

pel'cent of the property taxes for as long as the property is designated and retains si gnificance and
integrity.

Please note that if the local governing board wishes to extend the preservation commission’s
design review authority to significant features of the interior of a privately owned landmark, the
owner must give written consent. The designation ordinance must specify the features and
describe the nature of the Commission's design review authority over them. For publicly owned
landmarks, the preservation commission also has the authority to review significant interior
features specified in the designation ordinance.

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to comment on the report. Qur comments are advisory
only. Once the necessary public hearing or hearings have been held, the local governing board
may proceed with the designation decision. '

When the local governing board has concluded its action on the designation ordinance, please
complete and return the confirmation form enclosed with this letter.

Should you have any questions about our comments, please feel free to contact me at 919-733-
6545.

Sincerely,

"“}/\/\;QJT&JL@ITQW/

Michael T. Southern, Supervisor
Survey and Planning Branch
State Historic Preservation Office

MTS/s

Enclosures



